
Electoral Matters Committee  
 

Dear Member, 
 

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Electoral Matters Committee to be held as 
follows for the transaction of the business indicated. 
Tom Stannard 

Chief Executive  

 
DATE: Wednesday, 18 January 2023 

 
TIME:  2.00 pm 

 
VENUE: Microsoft Teams Meeting 

 
In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 

this meeting.  
 

AGENDA 

 
1   Apologies for Absence  

 

 

2   Declarations of Interest  

 

 

3   To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held 
on 16 November 2022.  

 

(Pages 2 - 5) 

4   Matters Arising  

 

 

5   Polling Stations update  

 

 

6   Voter ID update  
 
- Electoral Commission campaign 

- GM & Local Comms 
- Poll Cards 

- Voter Authority Certificate applications 
- Staff Recruitment 
- Equality Impact Assessment 

 

(Pages 6 - 8) 

7   Any Other Business  

 

 

8   Date and Time of the next meeting  

 

 

 
Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 3626 

Sara Bennett, Head of Elections E-Mail: elections@salford.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack



Electoral Matters – 16 November 2022 

 

In attendance: 

Elliot Hogan 

Tom Stannard 
 
Alison Watt 

Jacquie Russell 

Cllr Dickman (acting Chair) 

Cllr Dawson, Cllr Bentham, Cllr Brocklehurst, Cllr Kelly, Cllr R Garrido, Cllr Cusack, Cllr Pepper, Cllr 
Reynolds, Cllr Walters, Cllr Shama, Cllr King, Cllr Saunders 

 
1) Apologies for Absence:  

Iolanda Puzio 

Cllr Robinson-Smith 

Cllr Cammell 

Cllr Hinds 

Cllr Bailey 

Cllr Fletcher 

Cllr Kealey 

Cllr Brabiner 

Cllr Warmisham 

Cllr Lancaster 

 
2) Declarations of interest 

Nothing to declare 

3) Minutes of previous meeting (20 July 2022) 

Approved by Cllr Dawson and Cllr Dickman 

4) Matters Arising 

None 

5) EMC Presentation  

- Elections Act Update 

We have been modelling on 6% electorate requiring Voter Authority Certificates.  

Cllr Garrido – Does first past the post in a Mayoral election mean no second preference vote?  

Elliot – Yes, electors will have just one vote. 

Cllr Reynolds – When someone is applying for postal vote what will they need to provide? 

Page 2

Agenda Item 3



Elliot – Information will be coming up, but it isn’t necessary for May 2023 election.  

Cllr Dawson – In tower blocks, large apartments etc with multiple letter boxes, some are overfull, or 

people don’t receive post. How do we know that information/certificates are getting to them? Do 

we do a test sample? To reduce the 6% requiring certificates? 

Elliot – We are not sure about local comms yet; we will have a number of conversations about this. 

We are aware of people not receiving post. If their certificate doesn’t reach them we can print and 

give to them in person. In terms of ensuring people receive information by post beforehand, I am 

not sure how we can follow up on that but we will note and discuss.  

Cllr Dickman – Are there any extra steps to promote voter ID? Is there going to be extra training for 
polling station staff? Where do we stand in relation to security staff? 

Elliot – Promotion and local comms will be vital. Electoral Commission will be doing theirs, but we 

will be doing things locally. We’re not sure what that will look like yet, but there is no funding for a 

universal write-out. 

Training will be very involved and of a high standard, particularly as this will be a massive change for 
polling station staff.  

Security is something we are very aware of. We know that it may be an issue, but as yet we don’t 
know how it will look. Other authorities are bringing this up too. 

Jacquie – It is not possible to focus comms just on people attending polling stations, but we will be 

ensuring everyone is aware of valid ID for polling station voting, as well as the process to obtain a 

certificate. The local campaign will include all the information.  

Accessibility  

Elliot – We are waiting for EC guidance so we can order what we need.  

Cllr Dickman – There are issues with Swinton Park polling station (inaccessible for wheelchair). Are 
there going to be any checks on temporary cabins to make sure they are accessible?  

Elliot – The Swinton Park temporary cabin was a one-off situation, an oversight when it was 
delivered. We will be making sure it is accessible from now on, your concerns are noted.  

Jacquie – We are undertaking a risk and accessibility review as part of election preparation, looking 

at what we need to put in place. If members have information (accessibility) they would like to 
include, please do.  

- Elections Act Postal Voting & EU 

Cllr Cusack – Will the changes (offence for campaigners to handle postal votes) be shared? 

Elliot – Yes, it will be made clear to all. 

Overseas Electors – we think the changes will double our number of Overseas Electors.  

- New Poll Card Proofs 

Cllr Dickman – Although it is a standard template, is it possible to make it any clearer about ID?  

Page 3



Elliot – The template has been provided, we’ve not had discussions yet about what we will do. We’ll 

be looking from an AGMA level, they’ll all look similar. If we can put info in bold etc we will do. The 

poll cards act as a way of local comms even though it is close to an election.  

Cllr Dawson – QR codes are on everything. Are we intending to use these? 

Elliot – I don’t think we would be able to do that, it would mean a huge amount of liaising with 
printers etc. 

Jacquie – We need to remember that the structure of poll cards is already established. We need to 
focus on any changes without overcomplicating the changes at the same time, a fine balance.  

- Boundary Constituency Review 

Proposals the same shared initially. Comments can be made until 5 December. 

Cllr Dawson – Why will Worsley and Eccles be categorised as a CC?  

Elliot – I don’t know.  

- Canvass Update 

It is difficult to give a return percentage compared to pre-canvass reform. However, there is a similar 
number outstanding.  

An email will be sent about access to ward registers.  

Cllr Cusack –We have a lot from Salford as well as Manchester and Bolton. Are they being dealt with 

in the same way? Responses? 

Elliot – We don’t deal with students in the same way. I will discuss with other authorities next AGMA 
meeting.  

- Polling Station Comments for May 2023 

Cllr Dickman – We should submit any comments as soon as possible.  

Elliot - Final questions/comments? None  

6) Any Other Business 

Cllr Dickman – In relation to security for polling station staff (particularly in Walkden North), and on 

the night as well, will security will be looked at ahead of the election? Voter and postal vote fraud 

were mentioned in literature, was that concern raised to the council?  

Elliot – Not aware of any complaint re fraud. 

Jacquie – In our project planning, slightly different arrangements will be in place in difference parts 

of the city based on risk assessments. Training for staff, and adjustments in stations, will include 

need for additional security and presence of senior staff. Looking at escalation routes, which haven’t 

been agreed with Tom yet. These include Station Inspectors (senior staff) to be mobile across the 

wards during the day, additional security staff mobile where identified. Risk assessment is built in to 
project plan.  

Cllr Saunders – Due to the coronation there will be two bank holidays (before and after the 

election). With the two bank holidays, I predict a lot of people will be taking the full week/end and 

Page 4



going away. This shouldn’t affect the voting itself, but might affect staffing – should this be taken 
into account in planning?  

Elliot – We were already looking into staffing issues, expecting some because of Voter ID anyway. 

We will add that to it.  

Jacquie – A plan is already in place to recruit staff as soon as we’re back from Christmas. We’ll be 

writing out, including targeted emails to 2021/22 staff straightaway. Salford’s election and count is 
our priority; support for Manchester will be secondary.  

 

7) Date and Time of next meeting 

18 January 2023 

Meeting Adjourned 

 

Page 5



Electoral Matters Committee Meeting 

Wednesday, 18th January, 2023 

Voter ID Local Implementation – Potential Equality Barriers 

 

Background 

In April 2022, the Elections Act 2022 was passed by the UK Parliament. This 

requires voters to show photo ID before being issued a ballot paper in polling 

stations at elections (UK Parliamentary elections, local council elections and 

referendums in England and police and crime commissioner elections in England 

and Wales). This will also apply to a proxy voter, someone voting in person on 

someone’s behalf. 

Voter ID provisions are due to be in place for local elections in England May 2023 

and at any UK Parliamentary election held after October 2023. The Electoral 

Commission has just started its extensive public awareness campaign on 9 January 

2023. The types of ID to be allowed include passports, photographic driving licences, 

biometric immigration documents and some concessionary travel passes. 

A new free voter document, called a Voter Authority Certificate (VAC), will be made 

available for those without any other form of photographic ID. Local authority 

elections teams will be responsible for issuing the VAC. Voters will be able to apply 

either in person, by post or online. No charge can be made for the VAC. These are 

now available as of 16 January 2023. 

 

Local Implementation  

The roll out of the Voter ID policy here in Salford may pose a number of challenges 

at a local level, most notably ensuring the correct knowledge dissemination and 

engagement is taking account of communities/groups who present with particular 

protected characteristics and the needs that they may have.  

Whilst there has been some research undertaken at a national level around voter 

identification, much of this is not broken down by characteristic and does not account 

for the unique make up of Salford as a city. Fundamental to the implementation 

process, therefore, will be identifying and highlighting relevant information to 

particular groups and understanding their own needs around the process.  

An initial summary of some of these needs can be found below. This list provides a 

number of key examples of barriers/challenges to implementation of the new voter 

process for particular communities, and is not proscribed to be exhaustive: 

 

Characteristic Potential Issue  

Age (Older Voters) Individuals in older age groups who may not be 
aware of the new process due to digital 

exclusion or not routinely accessing services. It 

Page 6

Agenda Item 6

https://bills.parliament.uk/bills/3020/publications


should be highlighted that anecdotal evidence 
suggests that this particular group may interact 
less with routine services than previous 

research indicates due to increased fears since 
the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic and 
thus have less access to information.  

 

Age (Younger Voters) Students and younger voters may be unaware 
of the new ID process for a number of reasons 
including communications being delivered to a 

home instead of term-time address for students 
and a low interaction with services/organisations 
highlighting the policy compared to other age 

groups.  
 

LGBTQ+ Voters Individuals who may feel uncomfortable using 
formal identification processes that are different 

to the gender they present as. Mitigation may 
include communications highlighting that any ID 
process on polling day will be done so in a 

dignified and appropriate manner.  

 

Disabled Voters Qualitative and quantitative research indicates 
that voters presenting as disabled are less likely 

to hold a form of identification compared to 
individuals who do not present with a disability. 
There may be further implications within the roll 

out process for particular needs such as BSL 
products, etc to highlight the new policy and 
where to obtain appropriate ID.  

BAEM Voters Qualitative and quantitative research indicates 

that BAEM individuals may be less likely to hold 
a form of ID. There may be other issues in 
communicating the new process both in 

highlighting the new policy as well as at polling 
stations on election day. For instance, where 
English is not a first language. 

 

In addition, Salford’s impact assessment process also includes a robust socio-

economic analysis feature and it should be noted that there are particular 

implications which will disadvantage groups lower down the socio-economic scale, 

including: 

 Being less likely to hold an acceptable form of ID due to costs imposed on 

accessing identification such as passports and driving licences.  

 Being less likely to interact with services either face to face or online in order 
to access information needed around the new policy.  

 Issues in accessing the new VAC cards because of digital exclusion or the 
absence of digital technology.  

 

Proposed Methods to Roll Out Provision 

To ensure there is widespread acknowledgement across Salford of these potential 

issues, a robust equality impact assessment process will be undertaken regarding 

Page 7



the roll out of the policy. This process will reflect delivery plans and the local 

response. The EIA process will remain ‘live’ until the local elections with feedback 

gathered and improvements noted to understand what has been implemented so it 

can be reviewed on an ongoing basis. The roll out of the Voter Id policy will also 

have a clear focus on: 

 Dedicated communications work  

 Robust use of engagement networks  

 Clear signposting to the UK Government digital portal to apply for VAC and 

accessing support in doing this.  

 Adjustments within polling stations as appropriate to offer proactive measures 

to communities with additional support needs when using voter ID. 

  

Potential Solutions 

To ensure the roll out is responsive to the needs of communities across the city, a 

number of initiatives have been proposed. This will include a robust communications 

strategy with particular emphasis on minority groups and dedicated messaging for 

particular communities. Other features will include:  

 Adaption of Electoral Commission messaging for Salford audiences and 

across a wide variety of different communication channels.  

 Community engagement via networks, partner organisations and dedicated 

community groups such as Salford Muslim Forum.  

 Dedicated webpages providing information on the voter ID process as well as 
signposting to help and support across the city.   

 Interpretation of local demographic data to understand community need 
alongside qualitative feedback from relevant organisations.  

 Engaging with colleagues and partners to encourage information sharing and 
cross signposting as much as possible.  

 Feedback from elected members across Salford whose unique knowledge 
and experience with the communities they interact with daily will be a crucial 
source of information in the roll out.  

 Ensuring, where possible, staff and volunteers at individual polling stations 
are briefed on the demographic factors and potential issues of the local area.  

 

 

 

 

Page 8


	Agenda
	3 To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 16 November 2022.
	6 Voter ID update

